
Crestmoor Frequently Asked Questions 
 
Q: Why is the San Mateo Union High School District  selling the Crestmoor site?  

A: The District has an interest in selling the Crestmoor property to  provide revenue to build 
affordable employee rental housing at another location in the District. The District’s ability to 
provide high-quality education has been challenged by the inability of employees to find 
affordable housing. One of the greatest challenges for SMUHSD employees is the high cost of 
housing in the Bay Area.  

A 2019 survey of District staff revealed:  

● 82% of District employees surveyed who rent their home or apartment feel “somewhat 
vulnerable to very vulnerable” about rent increases or their ability to renew leases in the 
future. 

● 91.8% of rental respondents “somewhat agree or strongly agree” that the cost of housing 
will impact their ability to stay in the area. 

High staff turnover negatively impacts our District’s ability to provide the level of high-quality 
education our students and families expect.  

At their October 10, 2019  meeting, the SMUHSD Board of Trustees directed staff to explore 
opportunities for staff housing. By building employee housing, we aim to continue to attract and 
retain the highest quality teachers and staff. The District views affordable housing as being 
necessary for a good quality of life, and we are uniquely positioned to face this challenge head 
on 

Q: Where will SMUHSD staff housing be built? 

A: The District is currently exploring viable locations for staff housing. Mills High School is one 
possible location, but staff are exploring other locations as well. No decisions have been made, 
and the District will continue to seek community input on this important decision.  

Q: Could staff from other school districts be allowed to live in the new employee housing 
housing?  
 
A: Yes the District will offer housing to its employees first and if there are additional unoccupied 
units, we would extend the opportunity to our partner districts including San Bruno Park, San 
Mateo-Foster City, Burlingame, Hillsborough and Millbrae. We believe the demand for this 
housing will be high.  
  
Q: What has been the process for the sale of the Crestmoor property to date?  

A: At their March 12, 2020 meeting the San Mateo Union High School District Board of Trustees 
approved a process to seek statements of qualifications from real estate developers to lead the 
purchase and development of the Crestmoor Property. Following these steps, the District’s real 
property consultants, DCG Strategies, transmitted a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on behalf 
of the District to real estate brokers and developers. Additionally, the RFQ was posted online 
with premium listings on large commercial real estate search platforms and on the DCG 

https://www.smuhsd.org/cms/lib/CA02206192/Centricity/Domain/55/Crestmoor%20RFQ.pdf


Strategies website. The purpose of the RFQ was to identify qualified entities that would be 
invited to submit proposals to purchase the Crestmoor site. DCG Strategies received responses 
to the RFQ on April 24, 2020.  

On May 21, 2020 the Board’s Property Committee, DCG Strategies, and District recommended, 
and the Board affirmed that eight entities be deemed as qualified to submit purchase proposals. 
On August 6, the Board affirmed the Request for Proposal to be released to these eight 
developers.  
 
Q:  What are the specific plans for housing development at Crestmoor? 
 
A:  At this time, there are no concrete plans for what housing development will look like at the 
Crestmoor site. Once a developer is selected by the District, that developer will prepare the 
proposed plans for the residential development, and the community will have an opportunity to 
give input during that process. Detailed information about what the homes will look like, where 
they will be located, what amenities will be available at the site to future homeowners and to the 
public, access points to the development, and other specifics therefore cannot be answered at 
this time. The District is intentionally involving the public early in this process. Again, the public 
will have multiple opportunities to have input on these issues as the project moves forward 
following the District’s selection of a developer.  

Q: Does the City of San Bruno have the opportunity to purchase all or some of the 
Crestmoor property at a reduced cost? 

A: The Naylor Act is part of a governing law that schools must follow when they go through the 
process of selling surplus property. School districts must first offer to sell the land at a reduced 
price to public parks and then offer it to local governments. The City of San Bruno did not 
express an interest in purchasing the Crestmoor property as part of this process. 

 
Q: How many houses could be built at the Crestmoor site? Will townhomes be part of 
this development? Will homes be for sale or for rent? 
 
A: The Crestmoor property is currently zoned R-1 or residential which allows 1-8 single family 
homes per acre. The District is pursuing sale of the property to a developer who will build single 
family homes to be sold.  
 
Q: Why doesn’t the District build staff housing at the Crestmoor site? 
 
A: The current R-1 zoning does not allow for higher density housing that would make the project 
viable for below-market rental units for staff.  
 
Q: When will Crestmoor be sold? 
 
A: The Crestmoor development process will likely take approximately 18 to 24 months 
beginning from when a prospective buyer is selected by the District in approximately September 
2020. SMUHSD will work with its Board of Trustees and local government agencies to make 
and report decisions and publicize findings to the public as the process proceeds.  



 
In general the process will involve: analysis of property, identification of possible developers, 
presentations by developers,selection by the Board of Trustees of a proposed developer for the 
site, negotiation of a purchase and sale agreement, due diligence review by the developer, 
completion of the entitlement process for development through the City of San Bruno, 
demolition of existing structures, construction and completion. 
 
A possible timeline will include:  
 

o Issue RFP August 2020  
o Select Developer September 2020 (anticipated) 
o Negotiate contracts with selected developer 
o Community engagement with selected developer 
o Obtain entitlements from the City  

 
Q: How will the public be involved in the process? When will I have a chance to give 
input? 
 
A. SMUHSD is committed to open and transparent communications with the public regarding 
the sale of Crestmoor and plans for employee housing. The RFQ and RFP were approved by 
the Board of Trustees at their March 12 board meeting, and a public hearing was held at that 
time.  
 
The District hosted a virtual public engagement meeting on August 4. Community input from the 
public at this meeting will be included in an addendum to the Request for Proposals we will send 
to developers later this week. You can continue to send emails to crestmoor@smuhsd.org and 
check our website (www.smuhsd.org/crestmoor) for regular updates.  
 
The District has an interest in working with a developer who is sensitive to the needs of the 
community. The District applied for and received a waiver from the state allowing us to use what 
is called “best value criteria” in selecting a developer. This means that the District is not required 
to accept the highest bidder. The District can consider a developer’s construction capability, 
sensitivity to the neighborhood and community support in selecting a buyer. 
 
The developer will hold additional public meetings and give residents the opportunity to give 
input.  Additionally, the City approval process will entail both environmental review and meetings 
before the City Council, all of which will include opportunities for public input.  
 

Q: What will happen to soccer fields at Crestmoor?  

A:  SMUHSD is committed to working with local government, developers and citizens to find a 
solution that meets the needs of the soccer community. The School Board and Superintendent 
work directly with the City Council and San Bruno City Manager in regular meetings to discuss 
this and other issues relevant to the City and School District. The District intends to work with a 
developer to create an interactive process that will lead to a satisfactory solution to interested 
parties, allowing for public input.  
 

mailto:crestmoor@smuhsd.org
http://www.smuhsd.org/crestmoor


Q: Why doesn’t the District lease the Crestmoor fields to youth soccer organizations? 
 
A: The District has rented the Crestmoor fields to the city of San Bruno for many years, and we 
are now working with the City and youth soccer organizations to find a solution that provides the 
soccer community with modern facilities that meet their needs.  
 
Q: Where will youth soccer organizations who have used the fields in the past practice 
and play in the interim? 
 
A: The SMUHSD Board of Trustees has an interest in working with the community to provide 
soccer fields to meet the needs of the community in both the short and long term. SMUHSD and 
the City of San Bruno each selected two representatives to discuss Crestmoor and related 
issues these representatives have met three times to review soccer usage, discuss ideas and 
share interests. No decisions have been made or could be made by this joint group. The District 
and City have reviewed the field usage and needs of San Bruno AYSO and Lowen Soccer 
Clubs. The District will ensure that the developer selected is committed to working with the 
community and to ensuring the availability of soccer fields.  
 
Q: Why did the District close the fields at Crestmoor in July? 
 
A: As a public school district we have been instructed to close our fields for the purpose of 
implementing social distancing to comply with San Mateo County County COVID-19 
requirements. The fields were flagged as a problem area due to the contact sports played there. 
All District stadium fields were closed earlier this summer. At that time, we notified San Bruno 
Parks and Recreation who were in the process of closing their sports fields. Unfortunately we 
received complaints that users were not adhering to social distancing regulations; this 
necessitated locking the Crestmoor fields as we did with our other fields.  
 
SMUHSD’s Facilities Use department opened stadium tracks at all comprehensive high schools, 
and we encourage San Bruno residents to take advantage of this community asset. Community 
members may reserve a time and space to use the tracks using Facilitron.  
 
Q: What will the District/developer do to make sure that some open space is maintained? 
What areas will be preserved?  
 
A: SMUHSD is aware of neighborhood concerns about the future development of the Crestmoor 
site. The San Bruno general plan calls for the preservation of open space as part of any future 
development of the site. This could include pocket parks or trails which capitalize on the natural 
assets of the site. While the specific areas to be preserved will be determined by the City of San 
Bruno and the developer at a later date, it is the District’s expectation that significant open 
space will remain as part of any future development of the Crestmoor site.  
 
Q: What will the developer do to mitigate the increase in traffic that new housing will 
bring to the area?  
 
A: Traffic is a concern in any development project. The Developer is legally obligated to 
undergo traffic studies during the environmental review process which will address these issues 
to find the best solutions to minimize traffic issues.  

https://www.facilitron.com/smuhsd94401


 
Q: How will a developer deal with the surrounding hillsides to prevent landslides?  
 
A: Developers have been provided with geotechnical studies and are aware of existing 
conditions. Developers will be required to work with the City to prevent dangerous conditions 
from damaging nearby homes and structures.  Developers would not be allowed to make any 
modifications to the property that would compromise safety.  
 
Q: What will happen to Peninsula High School? 
 
A: Peninsula High School will continue to serve students from across the District who have 
typically struggled to succeed at their comprehensive high school. Construction began in 
January 2020 on a new Peninsula High School located on Hinckley Road in a light industrial 
area of Burlingame. This new location will place students in a more central location closer to 
transit and job and internship opportunities. It is scheduled to open in mid November 2020. 
Peninsula students will attend this new school in person as soon as it is safe to do so once the 
school opens. Construction of the new Peninsula High School was made possible by the 
generosity of our taxpayers and voters who approved Measure O in 2010.  
 
 
Q: Which public schools will students living in the new Crestmoor housing attend? 
 
A: The area adjacent to 300 Piedmont Avenue is currently zoned for students in Kindergarten 
through 5th grade to attend John Muir Elementary. Students in the 6th through 8th grades are 
currently zoned to attend Parkside Middle School. Both of these schools are a part of the San 
Bruno Park School District. Students in the 9th through 12th grade are zoned to attend 
Capuchino High School in the San Mateo Union High School District.  
 
Q: How are field renovations at Capuchino High School being funded? 
 
A: Field renovations at Capuchino High School are being funded thanks to the generous 
support of voters and taxpayers who voted to approve the Bond Measure L in March 2020. The 
San Bruno General Plan calls for open space in any new development, such as the Crestmoor 
site.  
 
 
 
 
 
 


